
CITY OF NAPAVINE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

 Monday – May 15, 2023 – 6:00 PM 

 
                    

Deborah Graham, 
Position 1 
 

Amy Hollinger 
Position 2 
 
Arnold Haberstroh, 
Position 3 
 
Amy Morris 
Position 4 
 
Scott Collins 
Position 5 
 
Bryan Morris 
PW/CD Director   
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
City of Napavine 
407 Birch Ave SW 
P O Box 810 
Napavine, WA  98565 
360-262-3547 
 
City Website 
www.cityofnapavine.com 

 

    

  
 

 

 

I. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

II. INVOCATION 

III. CALL TO ORDER 

IV. ROLL CALL 

V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA – As Presented 

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

1) Planning Commission Meeting Minutes – May 1, 2023 
 

VII. OLD BUSINESS 

1) Review Chapter 17.44.070 – Standards for recreational 
vehicle parks. 
 

VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

IX. CONSIDERATION 
Adult Family Home/Residential Care Facility Codes- Review 
1) NMC 17.08.017 Adult Family Home Definition 
2) NMC 17.08.306 Residential Care Facility Definition   

 
X. CITIZEN COMMENT 

 
XI. GOOD OF THE ORDER  

 
XII. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 
Planning Commission Meeting is held in person and via 

Teleconference. 
Teleconference Information 

Dial-in number (US): (720) 740-9753 
Access code: 8460198 

To join the online meeting: 
https://join.freeconferencecall.com/rdenham8 

 

http://www.cityofnapavine.com/


NAPAVINE PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES 

                     May 1, 2023 6:00 P.M. 

 Napavine City Hall, 407 Birch Ave SW, Napavine, WA 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  

INVOCATION: Invocation was led by Commissioner Morris.  

CALL TO ORDER: 
Commissioner Graham opened the regular Planning Commission meeting to order at 6:00 PM 

 

ROLL CALL:   
Planning Commission present: Commissioner Graham, Commissioner Morris, and Commissioner Hollinger. 
Commissioner Collins communicated that he will be late. Commissioner Morris motioned to excuse 
Commissioner Haberstroh, seconded by Commissioner Hollinger. Vote on Motion 3 aye, 0 nay.  
 (Commissioner Collins had an emergency and did not attend the meeting) 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA – As presented:   
Commissioner Hollinger motioned to approve the agenda as presented, seconded by Commissioner Morris. Vote 
on motion 3 aye, 0 nay. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  

Commissioner Morris motioned to approve minutes from the Planning Commission Meeting on April 17, 2023, 
seconded by Commissioner Hollinger.  Vote on motion 3 aye and 0 nay. 
 

OLD BUSINESS:  
1) Review NMC 13.02.040 Developer connection fee/capacity charge payment.  

Director Morris stated that the ordinance was changed per the Planning Commission’s request.    
Commissioner Morris motioned to send the draft ordinance to the City Council, seconded by Commissioner 
Hollinger. Vote on motion 3 aye and 0 nay.  

NEW BUSINESS:  
1) Permitting Process Code Example 

Director Morris explained to the Planning Commission that the current code doesn’t provide a detailed process for 
the developer/permittees. This will provide the applicants with a clear understanding of timelines and the process 
of permits/land use.  
Commissioner Hollinger motioned to send the draft ordinance to City Council, seconded by Commissioner 
Morris. Vote on motion 3 aye and 0 nay.  

 

CONSIDERATION:  
2) Review Chapter 17.44.070 – Standards for recreational vehicle parks 

Director Morris and Planning Commission discussed and changed the items below of the current code.   
 

D.  There shall be a minimum of ten fifteen feet of separation maintained between all recreational vehicle 
pads. 

I.  Access to the site shall be over a county or state-maintained City of Napavine road improved to county 
standards as determined by the department of public works and transportation. 

   J.         Pedestrian walkways shall be provided to the service building(s), recreational activities and adjacent public 
street(s). Walkways shall be of a hard, durable, all-weather surface and a minimum width of four five feet. 
 
Add the below items Q-U. 
   Q.          Manufactured recreational vehicles only, No alterations, No tarps, No temporary or permanent additions. 



Napavine Planning Commission Meeting 
May 1, 2023 
Page 2 of 2 

City of Napavine is an equal opportunity provider and employer 

    R.        The majority of the recreational vehicle sites must be full hook up sites.  (water, sewer and electrical) 
    S.          Park must have sewer dump station available. 
    T.          Park must have on site management at all times. 
    U.         Park must allow police access at all times. 
 
Executive Assistant Katie Williams stated she would try to find a few examples of current existing codes from 
other cities to make sure there isn’t anything that hasn’t been covered.  

 
ADJOURNMENT 6:58 pm 

Commissioner Morris motioned to adjourn, seconded by Commissioner Hollinger. Vote 3 aye, 0 nay. 

These minutes are not verbatim.  If so desired, a recording of this meeting is available online at 

https://fccdl.in/mUvtwHiNvx. 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

 
Bryan Morris, Community Development/Public Works Director            Planning Commission Chairperson 

https://fccdl.in/mUvtwHiNvx


• 17.44.070 - Standards for recreational vehicle parks. 

SHARE LINK TO SECTIONPRINT SECTIONDOWNLOAD (DOCX) OF SECTIONSEMAIL SECTIONCOMPARE 

VERSIONS 

Recreational vehicle parks developed or enlarged after the effective date of the ordinance 

codified in this title shall be designed and developed in accordance with the following conditions 

and limitations: 

A.    The minimum site area shall be three acres. 

        B.    The maximum length of stay of any unit shall be one hundred eighty days. 

        C.      Landscaping shall be provided around the perimeter of the site as approved by the board of 

adjustment. 

 

        D. There shall be a minimum of fifteen feet of separation maintained between all recreational 

vehicle pads. 

       E.    One off-street parking stall shall be provided for each designated recreational vehicle space. 

 

      F.    The following facilities shall be provided in accordance with rules and regulations promulgated 

by the director of the county health department: 

            1   .Laundry facilities; 

            2.   Toilets; 

            3.   Bathing facilities; 

            4.   Garbage disposal facilities. 

     G     .A minimum of five percent of the site shall be provided for recreational activity for the 

occupants of the park. The area shall be exclusive of the required perimeter buffer area, centrally 

located and of such grade and surface to be suitable for active recreation. 

      H.       Internal circulatory roads shall provide access to each space and shall have a minimum driving 

surface of twenty-two feet in width and shall be constructed with a road base and surface in accordance 

with the adopted county road standards for local access streets. 

      I.         Access to the site shall be over a City of Napavine road improved to county standards as 

determined by the department of public works and transportation. 

     J.         Pedestrian walkways shall be provided to the service building(s), recreational activities and 

adjacent public street(s). Walkways shall be of a hard, durable, all-weather surface and a minimum 

width of five feet. 

    K.        Surface water runoff shall be controlled in accordance with county standards. 

https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/


      L.       Outdoor lighting shall be provided to adequately illuminate internal streets and pedestrian 

walkways. Lights shall be sized and directed to avoid adverse impacts on adjacent properties. 

    M       .All public streets abutting the site shall be improved to county standards in accordance with the 

adopted road standards for the classification of road involved. 

    N.      Water supply shall be provided subject to the approval of the county fire marshal. 

    O.        Garbage disposal facilities shall be provided in accordance with applicable county board of 

health rules and regulations, and subject to approval of the health department. 

    P.         Electrical service connections shall meet state Department of Labor and Industries standards.. 

 

   Q.          Manufactured recreational vehicles only, No alterations, No tarps, No temporary or permanent 

additions 

    R.        Majority of the recreational vehicle sites must be full hook up sites.  (water, sewer and 

electrical) 

    S.          Park must have sewer dump station available 

    T.          Park must have on site management at all times 

    U.         Park must allow police access at all times 

 

 

(Ord. 163 § 4.8.13, 1989) 

 



17.08.305 - Recreation vehicle park.

"Recreation vehicle park" means a residential use in which a tract of land is rented temporarily, for a

period of one hundred twenty days or less, for the use of two or more recreational vehicles occupied and

used as a dwelling unit.

(Ord. 163 § 2.2 (part), 1989)



17.51.010 Recreational vehicles, recreational vehicle parks, and camping. 

A. Purpose. The purpose of this section is to ensure that recreational vehicle parks are located, developed and
occupied in accordance with standards and regulations which will protect the health, safety, general welfare;
environmental considerations such as those covered by critical areas, flood hazard protection, and shoreline
development regulations; convenience of the occupants of such recreational vehicle parks; and the citizens of the
city.

B. Definitions. If definitions, rules and regulations defined in this section conflict with provisions of other city
ordinances, the provisions of this section shall prevail.

“Mobile home” means a transportable residential structure fabricated at a factory not in accordance with the 
Uniform Building Code nor with the standards of the Federal Manufactured Home Construction and Safety 
Standards (HUD Code enacted on June 15, 1976), and designed for transportation on its own chassis. Mobile 
homes within the city of Cle Elum are considered nonconforming structures by definition under CEMC Section 
17.08.300. 

“Park model recreational vehicle (PMRV)” means a tiny home or similar dwelling structure with wheels and a 
chassis. A PMRV with its wheels taken off and mounted on a foundation will still be viewed as a temporary or 
recreational use and not a permanent dwelling. PMRVs are only permitted for temporary use in Washington State, 
unless in a mobile home park (RCW 35.21.684 and 36.01.225). PMRVs must adhere to applicable snow load 
requirements for Cle Elum, or as approved by the city building official. 

“Recreational vehicle” or “RV” means a vehicle or portable structure built on a chassis and designed to be used for 
temporary occupancy or travel occupancy or for travel, recreational or vacation use. RVs include, but are not 
limited to, fifth wheels, truck campers, motor homes, travel trailer, camping trailers, tent trailers and PMRVs. An RV 
shall be of such size and weight as not to require a special highway movement permit and certified as approved as 
such by the Department of Labor and Industries by the attachment of their official “Green” seal. 

“Recreational vehicle park” or “RV park” means a tract or parcel of land upon which two or more recreational 
vehicle sites are located, principally used for occupancy by predominantly RVs as temporary living quarters for 
recreation or vacation purposes with a maximum allowable stay per vehicle of one hundred eighty days; or as 
conditioned within the conditional use permit, annexation agreement, and/or development agreement as 
appropriate. 

“Recreational vehicle site” or “RV site” means a plot of ground within an RV park intended for temporary location of 
an RV as a dwelling unit for recreation or vacation purposes with sewage facilities approved by the appropriate 
jurisdiction. 

“Sanitary station” or “sanitary dumping station” means a facility used for removing and disposing of wastes from 
RV sewage holding tanks. 

C. General Requirements.

Ch. 17.51 Recreational Vehicles, Recreational Vehicle Parks, and Camping | Cle Elum Municipal Code Page 1 of 6

The Cle Elum Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1640, passed December 12, 2022.



1. No RV shall be occupied overnight for commercial purposes anywhere in the city. Exceptions to the rule 
may be permitted by the city at the city’s discretion as listed below: 

a. Contractors granted a city building permit during the authorized construction phase of a project; 

b. A homeowner building a permanent home on site; 

c. Nonprofit corporations and charities for a period of no longer than ten consecutive days; 

d. Special events, recognized and authorized by an approved event application with the city. 

2. Unless otherwise included in a conditional use permit, annexation agreement, or development 
agreement issued by the city and regulated by RV park management, no external appurtenances, such as 
carports, cabanas, or patios, may be attached to any RV while it is in an RV park. There shall be no outside 
storage of materials or appliances. This may include, but is not limited to: construction materials, scrap metal, 
refrigerators, furniture typically found inside a home such as couches, or commercial equipment. 

3. No space within an RV park shall be rented for any purpose other than those expressly allowed by this 
section. 

4. No person, company, or corporation shall establish or modify an RV park without first complying with the 
provisions of this section. 

D. Criteria for Locating an RV Park. RV parks may only be established on property within which meets the 
following criteria: 

1. RV parks may be allowed in the following zones of the city: 

Multiple-Family 
Residential District 

Industrial District 

Entry Commercial 
District 

General Commercial 
District 

Planned Mixed Use 
District 

2. After development, the conditions of the soil, groundwater level, drainage and topography shall not 
create hazards to the property or to the health and safety of the occupants or others as determined by the 
city. 

3. RV parks must be located with direct access to a street with a minimum right-of-way width of forty feet; 
or such park must have been designed to provide for adequately safe ingress and egress to and from a public 
street with adequate frontage thereon to permit appropriate access to and from the park. 

Ch. 17.51 Recreational Vehicles, Recreational Vehicle Parks, and Camping | Cle Elum Municipal Code Page 2 of 6

The Cle Elum Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1640, passed December 12, 2022.



E. Conditional Use Permit Required. An RV park will be allowed only upon the issuance of a conditional use permit. 
The owner, operator, and occupants of an RV park must develop and use the RV park in strict compliance with the 
conditions imposed by the conditional use permit or those agreed to as part of an annexation agreement or 
development agreement. 

F. Site and Design Review. The conditional use permit process or equivalent annexation agreement or 
development agreement or both will include a site and design review in accordance with CEMC Chapter 17.76. An 
approved site and design review will constitute an integral part of the permit or agreements for the RV park, and 
will be binding upon the owner of the property, its successors and assigns. All development within the RV park 
must be consistent with the approved site and design review. 

G. Completion Prior to Occupancy—Phasing. All required site improvements, including uses other than the RV 
park, and other conditions of the permit and site and design review, must be identified or met prior to occupancy 
of any site by any RV; provided, completion may be accomplished in phases if such phases are identified and 
approved in the permit or agreements. 

H. Design Standards. The following are minimum design standards for RV parks: 

1. Minimum Site Area. The minimum size of an RV park, inclusive of areas used for roads and utility 
corridors, is one acre or as approved by city public works, planning, and building departments. 

2. Density. The number of RVs permitted in an RV park shall not exceed a density of twenty units per gross 
acre. During the permit review, the density may be limited further to ensure compatibility with the 
surrounding area. 

3. RV Site. 

a. Each individual RV site shall be not less than eight hundred square feet in size. 

b. All RV sites shall have a minimum width of twenty feet. 

4. Access Points. Entrances and exits to the RV park may be shared with any abutting or adjacent uses if 
approved by the city, so long as access is adequately designed for safe and convenient movement of 
vehicular traffic into and out of the RV park, and there is minimal friction with free movement of traffic on 
adjacent city streets. All traffic into and out of the RV park must be through such entrances and exits. No 
entrance or exit shall require a turn at an acute angle for vehicles moving in the direction intended, and radii 
of curbs and pavements at intersections must be such as to facilitate easy turning movements for vehicles 
with trailers attached. No material impediment to visibility shall be created or maintained which violates the 
city building code, CEMC Chapter 15.04. 

5. Parking. At least one parking space shall be provided on each RV site or in a location within reasonable 
proximity to the site/sites, as approved by the conditional use permit or agreements. At least one parking 
space for each eight RV sites must be provided for visitor parking in the RV park. 

6. Internal RV Park Roads. All internal RV park roads must be privately owned and maintained. RV park roads 
must observe the following minimums: 

Ch. 17.51 Recreational Vehicles, Recreational Vehicle Parks, and Camping | Cle Elum Municipal Code Page 3 of 6

The Cle Elum Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1640, passed December 12, 2022.



a. Twelve feet of width per each travel lane and eight feet of width per each parking lane. 

b. Roads must be constructed of an all-weather surface and maintained with adequate dust control 
program which must be submitted with the RV park application. 

7. Open Space/Recreational Facilities. A minimum of five percent of the RV park must be set aside and 
maintained as open space for the recreational use of RV park occupants. Such space and location must be 
accessible and usable by all residents of the RV park for passive or active recreation. Parking spaces, 
driveways, access streets and storage areas are not considered to be usable open space. The percentage 
requirements may be reduced if substantial and appropriate recreational facilities are provided, i.e., 
recreational buildings, basketball courts, swimming pool, pedestrian trails, shoreline amenities, etc. The 
satisfaction of open space requirements will be evaluated on a case-by-case basis. 

8. Setbacks. No RV site shall be closer than twenty-five feet from any exterior park property line abutting 
upon a major arterial, or residential zone, or ten feet from any other exterior RV park property line. 
Permanent structures within an RV park must have front and rear yards of twenty feet each, and minimum 
side yards of ten feet each or as decided by city public works, planning, and building departments. 

9. Landscaping/Screening. The RV park must provide visual screening and landscaping, discussed during site 
and design review and as follows: 

a. RV parks must be enclosed by a fence, hedgerows, shrubs, or trees. The planning commission may 
require a fence and hedgerow of trees, shrubs or other landscaping vegetation and will make the 
determination part of the conditional use permit or agreements. 

b. All trees, flowers, lawns, trails, and other landscaping features must be maintained by the RV park 
management in a healthy growing condition at all times, as described in CEMC Chapter 17.64. 

10. Signs. Signs and advertising devices must be in conformance with the city sign code, CEMC Chapter 
15.20: 

a. One identifying sign which may be indirectly lit, but not with a flashing light, may be located at the 
entrance of the RV park. Such signs must be in conformance with the Uniform Building Code and local 
ordinances, as well as standards and conditions identified in the conditional use permit or agreements; 

b. Directional and informational signs for the convenience of the occupants of the RV park as allowed 
by city code and only as permitted within the conditional use permit or agreements. 

11. Utilities. At least thirty percent of all RV sites within each RV park must have water, sewer, and electricity 
provided to them. At least sixty percent of all RV sites within each RV park must have water and electricity 
provided to them. All utility lines in each RV park must be underground and be approved by the proper 
agencies providing the inspections. 

12. Storm Drainage. On-site storm drainage control facilities in RV parks are subject to the approval of the 
city public works, planning, and building departments according to the site and design review. 

Ch. 17.51 Recreational Vehicles, Recreational Vehicle Parks, and Camping | Cle Elum Municipal Code Page 4 of 6

The Cle Elum Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1640, passed December 12, 2022.



13. Public Facilities. RV parks must provide the following public facilities in such quantity, size, and location as 
is approved by the planning commission or as agreed to and set forth in any annexation agreement or 
development agreement: 

a. A water distribution system connected to the city’s water and sewer utility; 

b. Fire hydrants, in number and location, shall be as required by the fire chief; 

c. A metered water station for filling RV water storage tanks in accordance with CEMC Chapter 15.04 
and other local regulations; 

d. At least one restroom facility with laundry room including washers and dryers must be open to RV 
park occupants and shall comply with this code and other applicable codes; 

e. At least one open dump station for RV sites without full hookups must be provided by and 
maintained by the RV park for emptying RV sewage holding tanks/containers; 

f. Refuse tanks/containers for solid waste must be sized and provided in sufficient quantity to 
adequately handle one week of generated refuse by RV park occupants and follow the regulations within 
CEMC Chapter 8.08. RV park garbage must be picked up not less than once weekly. RV park personnel 
shall monitor garbage tanks/containers for cleanliness and maintain the RV park free of any uncontrolled 
garbage and refuse. RV dumpster locations must be screened from view by a fence or landscaped 
enclosure. 

14. Other Utility Systems. If other utility systems such as natural gas, television cable, or telephone are 
installed in an RV park, such installation must be in accordance with state and local laws, rules, and 
regulations. 

15. Health Regulations. All RV parks must comply with applicable state and local health laws, rules, and 
regulations. 

16. Site Identification. All RV sites must be well marked and numbered. 

17. Design Standard Exceptions. The planning commission, or as may be provided in an annexation 
agreement or development agreement, after receiving recommendations of the city staff, may waive or 
modify any of the design standard requirements after finding that such improvements would not be 
detrimental to the existing or foreseeable development of the surrounding properties. 

I. Accessory Uses. Management headquarters, recreational facilities, restrooms, sanitary stations, showers, coin-
operated laundry facilities, and other uses and structures customarily incidental to the operation of an RV park are 
permitted as accessory uses to the RV park. In addition, grocery stores and convenience shops may be permitted 
as accessory uses at the discretion of the planning commission or as agreed to and set forth in any annexation 
agreement or development agreement subject to the following restrictions: 

1. Such additional establishments and the parking areas primarily related to their operations shall not 
occupy more than five percent of the gross area of the RV park; 

Ch. 17.51 Recreational Vehicles, Recreational Vehicle Parks, and Camping | Cle Elum Municipal Code Page 5 of 6

The Cle Elum Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1640, passed December 12, 2022.



The Cle Elum Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1640, passed December 12, 2022. 

Disclaimer: The city clerk’s office has the official version of the Cle Elum Municipal Code. Users should contact the 
city clerk’s office for ordinances passed subsequent to the ordinance cited here. 

City Website: cityofcleelum.com 
City Telephone: (509) 674-2262 
Code Publishing Company, A General Code Company 

2. Such additional establishments shall present no visible evidence from any city street outside the RV park 
of their commercial character which would attract customers other than occupants of the RV park, unless 
otherwise conditioned within the conditional use permit or agreements; 

3. The structures housing such facilities must not be located closer than fifty feet to any city street and shall 
not be directly accessible from any city street, but must be accessible only from a street within the RV park, or 
as expressly permitted by the conditional use permit or agreements. 

J. RV Park Administration. 

1. The owner of an RV park will be responsible for the development and maintenance of the RV park in 
strict conformity with the site and design review, the conditional use permit or agreements, and all applicable 
laws and ordinances, including any prior conditions of approval by Kittitas County not in conflict with the 
agreements and Cle Elum Municipal Code. 

2. A written management plan must be submitted for approval as a part of the conditional use permit 
process or agreements. It must include, at a minimum, proposed RV park rules including quiet hours, and 
proposed methods to enforce occupancy limitations and other requirements of this chapter. Quiet hours are 
defined in Chapter 173-60 WAC. 

(Ord. 1485 § 3 (Exh. B), 2018) 

Ch. 17.51 Recreational Vehicles, Recreational Vehicle Parks, and Camping | Cle Elum Municipal Code Page 6 of 6

The Cle Elum Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 1640, passed December 12, 2022.



Marysville Chapter 22C.240 
RECREATIONAL VEHICLE PARKS

Sections:
22C.240.010  Purpose.

22C.240.020  General requirements.

22C.240.030  Criteria for locating a recreational vehicle park.

22C.240.040  Conditional use permit required.

22C.240.050  Health district approval required.

22C.240.060  Final site plan.

22C.240.070  Completion prior to occupancy – Phasing.

22C.240.080  Design standards.

22C.240.090  Accessory uses.

22C.240.100  Park administration.

22C.240.010 Purpose.
The purpose of this chapter shall be to ensure that recreational vehicle parks are located, developed
and occupied in accordance with standards and regulations which will protect the health, safety,
general welfare and convenience of the occupants of such parks and the citizens of the city of
Marysville. (Ord. 2852 § 10 (Exh. A), 2011).

22C.240.020 General requirements.
(1) No recreational vehicle shall be occupied overnight unless the same is parked inside an approved
recreational vehicle park. An exception to this rule may be granted for temporary uses as defined in
Chapter 22C.110 MMC, subject to strict compliance with the requirements of said section.

(2) No recreational vehicle shall be occupied for commercial purposes anywhere in the city of
Marysville. An exception to this rule may be granted for temporary uses as defined in Chapter 22C.110
MMC, subject to strict compliance with the requirements of said section.

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C110.html#22C.110
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C110.html#22C.110


(3) No recreational vehicle shall be used as a permanent place of abode, or dwelling, for indefinite
periods of time. Occupancy in a park for more than 180 days in any 12-month period shall be
conclusively deemed to be permanent occupancy. Any action toward removal of wheels of a
recreational vehicle, except for temporary purposes of repair, or placement of the unit on a foundation,
is hereby prohibited.

(4) No external appurtenances, such as carports, cabanas or patios, may be attached to any
recreational vehicle while it is in a park.

(5) No space within a recreational vehicle park shall be rented for any purpose other than those
expressly allowed by this chapter.

(6) No person, company or corporation shall establish or modify a recreational vehicle park without
first complying with the provisions of this chapter. (Ord. 2852 § 10 (Exh. A), 2011).

22C.240.030 Criteria for locating a recreational vehicle park.
Recreational vehicle parks may only be established on property within the city of Marysville which
meets the following criteria:

(1) Recreational vehicle parks shall be allowed in all zones of the city except single-family and
multiple-family residential zones.

(2) The minimum site area of a park shall be 10 acres. The maximum site area of a park, or
combination of adjacent parks, shall be 15 acres. Parks shall be considered to be “adjacent” to one
another unless they are separated by an unrelated land use, and not merely by a public or private
street, easement or buffer strip.

(3) After development, the conditions of the soil, ground water level, drainage, and topography shall
not create hazards to the property or to the health or safety of the occupants.

(4) Property under the jurisdiction of the Shoreline Management Act shall be excluded from
development of recreational vehicle parks if it is designated as being in the natural environment.

(5) Parks shall be located with direct access to a major arterial or state highway and with appropriate
frontage thereon to permit appropriate design of entrances and exits. No entrance or exit from a park
shall be permitted through a residential district, nor require movement of traffic from the park through a
residential district. (Ord. 2852 § 10 (Exh. A), 2011).

22C.240.040 Conditional use permit required.



A recreational vehicle park shall be allowed only upon the issuance of a conditional use permit by the
hearing examiner and city council. The owner, operator and occupants of a recreational vehicle park
shall develop and use the park in strict compliance with the conditions imposed by the permit. The
agency issuing the permit shall maintain continuing jurisdiction for the review and enforcement of said
conditions. (Ord. 2852 § 10 (Exh. A), 2011).

22C.240.050 Health district approval required.
Prior to occupancy of a recreational vehicle park, the owner shall obtain a permit from the Snohomish
Health District and comply with all rules, regulations and requirements of said district. Said permit
must be kept current at all times, subject to the park being closed. The rules, regulations and
requirements of the health district shall be construed as being supplements to the provisions of this
chapter. (Ord. 2852 § 10 (Exh. A), 2011).

22C.240.060 Final site plan.
A site plan shall be submitted with all applications for a recreational vehicle park. Said site plan shall
be subject to review, modification, approval or denial by the agency issuing the permit. An approved
final site plan shall constitute an integral part of the permit for the recreational vehicle park, and shall
be binding upon the owner of the property, its successors and assigns. All development within the
recreational vehicle park shall be consistent with the final site plan. Such plans may be modified or
amended at the request of an owner upon receiving administrative approval by the community
development director; provided, that if said modification or amendment affects the external impacts of
the recreational vehicle park, or is determined by the community development director to be
substantial in nature, then such modification or amendment shall be resubmitted to the hearing
examiner as a conditional use permit application pursuant to MMC 22G.010.340. (Ord. 2852 § 10
(Exh. A), 2011).

22C.240.070 Completion prior to occupancy – Phasing.
All required site improvements and other conditions of the permit and final site plan shall be met prior
to occupancy of any site by a recreational vehicle; provided, that completion may be accomplished by
phases if approved by the community development director and security for performance in
accordance with the provisions of Chapter 22G.040 MMC and acceptable to the community
development director is received by the city. The community development director may also require
security for maintenance for a period up to five years in accordance with the provisions of Chapter
22G.040 MMC. (Ord. 2852 § 10 (Exh. A), 2011).

22C.240.080 Design standards.
The purpose of this section is to establish minimum design standards for recreational vehicle parks.

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22G/Marysville22G010.html#22G.010.340
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22G/Marysville22G040.html#22G.040
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22G/Marysville22G040.html#22G.040


(1) Density. The number of recreational vehicles permitted in a park shall not exceed a density of 20
units per gross acre. The agency issuing the permit may limit density further to ensure compatibility
with the surrounding areas.

(2) Campsite Size. Each individual recreational vehicle site shall be not less than 800 square feet in
size.

(3) Access Points. Entrances and exits to the park shall be designed for safe and convenient
movement of traffic into and out of the park and to minimize friction with free movement of traffic on
adjacent streets. All traffic into and out of the park shall be through such entrances and exits. No
entrance or exit shall require a turn at an acute angle for vehicles moving in the direction intended,
and radii of curbs and pavements at intersections shall be such as to facilitate easy turning
movements for vehicles with trailers attached. No material impediment to visibility shall be created or
maintained which obscures the view of an approaching driver in the right lane of the street within 100
feet of the intersection with the park entrance.

(4) Parking. At least one parking space shall be provided on each site. At least one parking space for
each 20 sites shall be provided for visitor parking in the park.

(5) Internal Park Roads. All internal park roads shall be privately owned and maintained. They shall be
constructed to all-weather standards, as approved by the city engineer. Park roads shall have a
minimum improved width as follows:

(a) One-way road, no parking: 11 feet;

(b) One-way road with parking on one side, or two-way road with no parking: 18 feet;

(c) Two-way road with parking on one side: 27 feet;

(d) Two-way road with parking on both sides: 34 feet.

(6) Open Space/Recreational Facilities. A minimum of 20 percent of the site shall be set aside and
maintained as open space for the recreational use of park occupants. Such space and location shall
be accessible and usable by all residents of the park for passive or active recreation. Parking spaces,
driveways, access streets, and storage areas are not considered to be usable open space. The
percentage requirement may be reduced if substantial and appropriate recreational facilities (such as
recreational buildings, swimming pool or tennis courts) are provided.



(7) Setbacks. No recreational vehicle site shall be closer than 35 feet from any exterior park property
line abutting upon a major arterial, shoreline, or residential zone, or 20 feet from any other exterior
park property line. Permanent structures within a park shall have minimum front and rear yards of 20
feet each, and minimum side yards of 10 feet each.

(8) Landscaping/Screening.

(a) The park shall provide visual screening and landscaping as required in perimeter setback
areas and open space. Landscaping may consist of suitable ground cover, shrubs and trees;
provided, that they are installed prior to the first occupancy of the park and are of such species
and size as would normally fulfill a screening function within five years of being planted. Site
development shall be sensitive to the preservation of existing vegetation;

(b) Along the exterior site boundary, a minimum 20-foot-wide screen landscaped to the L1
standards shall be provided (see Chapter 22C.120 MMC, Landscaping and Screening). It shall
be designed and maintained to be aesthetically pleasing, and functional for site screening and
noise buffering;

(c) Where needed to enhance aesthetics or to ensure public safety, recreational vehicle parks
shall be enclosed by a fence, wall, earth mound or by other designs which will complement the
landscape and assure compatibility with the adjacent environment;

(d) All trees, flowers, lawns and other landscaping features shall be maintained by the park
management in a healthy growing condition at all times.

(9) Signs. Signs and advertising devices shall be prohibited in recreational vehicle parks except:

(a) If the park is visible from Interstate 5, one on-site identification sign complying with the
standards of the State Highway Signage Code;

(b) One identifying sign at each entrance of the park, which may be indirectly lit, but not flashing.
Said sign shall comply with Chapter 22C.160 MMC;

(c) Directional and information signs for the convenience of occupants of the park in compliance
with Chapter 22C.160 MMC.

(10) Utilities. Electricity shall be provided to each recreational vehicle site. All utility lines in the park
shall be underground and shall be approved by the agency or jurisdiction providing the service.

https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C120.html#22C.120
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C160.html#22C.160
https://www.codepublishing.com/WA/Marysville/html/Marysville22C/Marysville22C160.html#22C.160


(11) Storm Drainage. Storm drainage control facilities shall be subject to approval by the city engineer
and shall comply with the city’s storm sewer code.

(12) Public Facilities. Recreational vehicle parks shall provide the following public facilities in such
quantity, size and location as is approved by the agency issuing the conditional use permit:

(a) A water distribution system connected to the city’s water utility;

(b) A water station for filling recreational vehicle water storage tanks;

(c) Restroom facilities containing showers and toilets connected to the city’s sewer utility, the
minimum number of which shall be one commode and one shower for each 20 recreational
vehicle sites;

(d) A sanitary waste station for emptying sewage holding tanks of recreational vehicles;

(e) Refuse containers for solid waste in adequate quantity shall be rented from and serviced by
the city of Marysville garbage utility. Park garbage shall be picked up daily by park personnel,
who shall also maintain the park free of any uncontrolled garbage. (Ord. 2852 § 10 (Exh. A),
2011).

22C.240.090 Accessory uses.
Management headquarters, recreational facilities, restrooms, dumping stations, showers, coin-
operated laundry facilities, and other uses and structures customarily incidental to operation of a
recreational vehicle park are permitted as accessory uses to the park. In addition, grocery stores and
convenience shops shall be permitted as accessory uses in the discretion of the agency issuing the
conditional use permit, subject to the following restrictions:

(1) Such establishments and the parking areas primarily related to their operations shall not occupy
more than five percent of the gross area of the park.

(2) Such establishments shall present no visible evidence from any street outside the park of their
commercial character which would attract customers other than occupants of the park.

(3) The structures housing such facilities shall not be located closer than 50 feet to any public street
and shall not be directly accessible from any public street, but shall be accessible only from a street
within the park. (Ord. 2852 § 10 (Exh. A), 2011).

22C.240.100 Park administration.



(1) The owner of a recreational vehicle park shall be responsible for the development and
maintenance of the park in strict conformity with the binding site plan, the conditional use permit, and
all applicable laws and ordinances. Each park shall have an on-site manager available 24 hours per
day, seven days per week.

(2) A written management plan shall be submitted for approval as a part of the conditional use permit
process. It shall include, at a minimum, the proposed management structure, proposed park rules and
regulations, and proposed methods to enforce occupancy limitations and other requirements of this
chapter. (Ord. 2852 § 10 (Exh. A), 2011).

The Marysville Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 3258, passed February 13, 2023.

Disclaimer: The city clerk’s office has the official version of the Marysville Municipal Code. Users
should contact the city clerk’s office for ordinances passed subsequent to the ordinance cited
above.

City Website: https://www.marysvillewa.gov/
City Telephone: (360) 363-8000

Code Publishing Company

https://www.marysvillewa.gov/
https://www.codepublishing.com/


 

 

 
    Created: 2022-07-21 16:44:20 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 18) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

17.08.017 Adult family home. 

"Adult family home" means the regular family abode of a person or persons who are providing personal care, 
room and board to more than one but not more than four adults who are not related by blood or marriage to the 
person or persons providing the services; except that a maximum of six adults may be permitted if the Washington 
State Department of Social and Health Services determines that the home and the provider are capable of meeting 
standards and qualifications provided for by law (RCW 70.128.010).  

Adult family home" means a residential home in which a person or persons provide personal 

care, special care, room, and board to more than one but not more than six adults who are 

not related by blood or marriage to the person or persons providing the services. An adult 

family home may provide services to up to eight adults upon approval from the department 

under RCW 70.128.066. The City adopts the states definition under RCW 70.128.066 as the 

same exists or hereafter amended.  

 

 

 

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=70.128.066


RCW RCW 70.128.01070.128.010

Definitions.Definitions.
Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, the definitions in this section apply throughout thisUnless the context clearly requires otherwise, the definitions in this section apply throughout this

chapter.chapter.
(1) "Adult family home" means a residential home in which a person or persons provide personal(1) "Adult family home" means a residential home in which a person or persons provide personal

care, special care, room, and board to more than one but not more than six adults who are not related bycare, special care, room, and board to more than one but not more than six adults who are not related by
blood or marriage to the person or persons providing the services. An adult family home may provideblood or marriage to the person or persons providing the services. An adult family home may provide
services to up to eight adults upon approval from the department under RCW services to up to eight adults upon approval from the department under RCW 70.128.06670.128.066..

(2) "Adult family home licensee" means a provider as defined in this section who does not receive(2) "Adult family home licensee" means a provider as defined in this section who does not receive
payments from the medicaid and state-funded long-term care programs.payments from the medicaid and state-funded long-term care programs.

(3) "Adult family home training network" means a nonprofit organization established by the(3) "Adult family home training network" means a nonprofit organization established by the
exclusive bargaining representative of adult family homes designated under RCW exclusive bargaining representative of adult family homes designated under RCW 41.56.02941.56.029 with the with the
capacity to provide training, workforce development, and other services to adult family homes.capacity to provide training, workforce development, and other services to adult family homes.

(4) "Adults" means persons who have attained the age of eighteen years.(4) "Adults" means persons who have attained the age of eighteen years.
(5) "Capacity" means the maximum number of persons in need of personal or special care(5) "Capacity" means the maximum number of persons in need of personal or special care

permitted in an adult family home at a given time. This number shall include related children or adults inpermitted in an adult family home at a given time. This number shall include related children or adults in
the home and who received special care.the home and who received special care.

(6) "Department" means the department of social and health services.(6) "Department" means the department of social and health services.
(7) "Home" means an adult family home.(7) "Home" means an adult family home.
(8) "Imminent danger" means serious physical harm to or death of a resident has occurred, or(8) "Imminent danger" means serious physical harm to or death of a resident has occurred, or

there is a serious threat to resident life, health, or safety.there is a serious threat to resident life, health, or safety.
(9) "Provider" means any person who is licensed under this chapter to operate an adult family(9) "Provider" means any person who is licensed under this chapter to operate an adult family

home. For the purposes of this section, "person" means any individual, partnership, corporation,home. For the purposes of this section, "person" means any individual, partnership, corporation,
association, or limited liability company.association, or limited liability company.

(10) "Resident" means an adult in need of personal or special care in an adult family home who is(10) "Resident" means an adult in need of personal or special care in an adult family home who is
not related to the provider.not related to the provider.

(11) "Resident manager" means a person employed or designated by the provider to manage the(11) "Resident manager" means a person employed or designated by the provider to manage the
adult family home.adult family home.

(12) "Special care" means care beyond personal care as defined by the department, in rule.(12) "Special care" means care beyond personal care as defined by the department, in rule.

[ [ 2020 c 220 § 12020 c 220 § 1. Prior: . Prior: 2019 c 466 § 22019 c 466 § 2; ; 2007 c 184 § 72007 c 184 § 7; prior: ; prior: 2001 c 319 § 62001 c 319 § 6; ; 2001 c 319 § 22001 c 319 § 2; ; 1995 c1995 c
260 § 2260 § 2; ; 1989 c 427 § 161989 c 427 § 16.].]

NOTES:NOTES:

Part headings not lawPart headings not law——SeverabilitySeverability——Conflict with federal requirementsConflict with federal requirements——2007 c 184:2007 c 184:
See notes following RCW See notes following RCW 41.56.02941.56.029..

PDFPDF

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=70.128.010
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=70.128.066
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=41.56.029
https://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/2019-20/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/House/1023-S.SL.pdf?cite=2020%20c%20220%20%C2%A7%201
https://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/2019-20/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/Senate/5672-S2.SL.pdf?cite=2019%20c%20466%20%C2%A7%202
https://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/2007-08/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/House/2111-S.SL.pdf?cite=2007%20c%20184%20%C2%A7%207
https://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/2001-02/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/House/1320-S.SL.pdf?cite=2001%20c%20319%20%C2%A7%206
https://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/2001-02/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/House/1320-S.SL.pdf?cite=2001%20c%20319%20%C2%A7%202
https://lawfilesext.leg.wa.gov/biennium/1995-96/Pdf/Bills/Session%20Laws/Senate/5799-S.SL.pdf?cite=1995%20c%20260%20%C2%A7%202
https://leg.wa.gov/CodeReviser/documents/sessionlaw/1989c427.pdf?cite=1989%20c%20427%20%C2%A7%2016
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=41.56.029
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=70.128.010&pdf=true


 

 

 
    Created: 2022-07-21 16:44:22 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 18) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

17.08.306 Residential care facility. 

"Residential care facility" means a licensed establishment operated with twenty-four hour supervision for 
the purpose of serving those persons, who by reason of their circumstances require care while living as a single 
housekeeping unit and/or in a supportive "family" environment. Residential care facilities for the purpose of this 
title may include group homes, foster homes, congregate car facilities, rest homes, convalescent homes and the 
like but shall not include correctional facilities. For purpose of this title, residential care facility shall also include 
facilities providing room, board and counseling services to homeless persons for periods up to forty-five days per 
family. For purposes of this title, residential care facilities shall also include any facilities licensed by the state of 
Washington that  which cares for at least three five (5) but not more than fifteen (15) people with functional 
disabilities that has not been licensed as an Adult Family Home pursuant to RCW 70.128.175.  

(Ord. 199 § 2 (part), 1992) 

(Ord. No. 454, § 2, 2-24-09) 

 


	5.15.23 PC AGENDA
	5.1.23 PC minutes 
	RV Park Sections
	City of Napavine WORKING standards for recreational vehicle parks
	17.08.305 Recreational vehicle park - Definiton
	Cle Elum RV Park Section 17.51.010, Recreational vehicles, recreational vehicle parks, and camping
	Marysville RV Park Code Chapter 22C.240 RECREATIONAL VEHICLE PARKS

	17.08.017___Adult_family_home Definition 
	RCW 70.128.010 - Adult Family Home  Definitions
	17.08.306___Residential_care_facility Definition



